
CSAC BOARD OF D IRECTORS

BRIEFING MATERIALS
Thursday, Apri l  25, 2019

12:30 p.m. – 4:00 p.m.

Cal i fo rn ia  S ta te 

Assoc ia t ion  o f  Count ies

Meeting Location:

Hyatt Regency Sacramento |  1209 L Street
Room: Ballroom BC

(800) 867-2581 |  Code: 7500508#



 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING 

Thursday, April 25, 2019 | 12:30 – 4:00 PM 
Hyatt Regency Sacramento | Room BC 

 

AGENDA 
 

Presiding: Virginia Bass, President 
 

12:30 PM BUFFET LUNCHEON 
 

 

1:00 PM PROCEDURAL ITEMS 
1. Roll Call 

 

2. Approval of Minutes from February 14, 2019 
 

 
Page 1 
 

Page 3 

 SPECIAL PRESENTATIONS  
 3. CSAC Institute Credentials & Fellows Program 

 Supervisor Lisa Bartlett | CSAC 1st Vice President & California Counties Foundation 
Board President 
 

Page 10 

 4. Institute for Local Government 
 Erica Manuel | ILG Executive Director 
 

Page 11 

 5. Nationwide Retirement Solutions 
 Eric Stevenson | Senior Vice President, Retirement Plans Distribution 

 

 

2:00 PM ACTION ITEMS 
6. CSAC Policy Committee Reports 

 Administration of Justice 
 Supervisor Alfredo Pedroza | Chair, Napa County 
 Jessica Devencenzi | CSAC, Legislative Representative 

 

 
 
Page 14 

  Agriculture, Environment & Natural Resources 
 Supervisor Sherri Brennan | Chair, Tuolumne County 
 Cara Martinson | CSAC, Legislative Representative 

 

Page 15 

  Government Finance & Administration 
 Supervisor Judy Morris | Chair, Trinity County 
 Geoff Neill | CSAC, Legislative Representative 

 

Page 16 

  Health & Human Services 
 Supervisor Das Williams | Chair, Santa Barbara County 
 Farrah McDaid Ting | CSAC, Legislative Representative 
 Justin Garrett | CSAC, Legislative Representative 

 

Page 17 

  Housing, Land Use & Transportation 
 Supervisor Oscar Villegas | Chair, Yolo County 
 Chris Lee | CSAC, Legislative Representative 

 

Page 18 

 7. Consideration of Proposed CSAC Budget for FY 2019-20 
 Supervisor Ed Scofield | CSAC, Treasurer, Nevada County 
 Manuel Rivas, Jr. | CSAC, Deputy Executive Director, Operations & Member Services 

 

Page 19 

   



 

3:00 PM INFORMATION ITEMS 
8. Caucus Report Outs 

 Rural 
 Supervisor Virginia Bass | Humboldt County 

 

 Suburban 
 Supervisor James Gore | Sonoma County 
 

 Urban 
 Supervisor Lisa Bartlett | Orange County 

 

 9. CSAC Finance Corporation Report 
 Supervisor Leonard Moty | CSAC Finance Corporation President 
 Alan Fernandes | CSAC Finance Corporation, CEO 
 Steven Bennett | Dominion, Regional Sales Manager 

 

Page 28 

 10. Federal Legislative Update 
 Tom Joseph | Paragon Government Relations, Vice President 
 Hasan Sarsour | Paragon Government Relations, Senior Associate 

 

 

 11. Operations & Member Services Update 
 Manuel Rivas, Jr. | CSAC, Deputy Executive Director, Operations & Member Services 
 David Liebler | CSAC, Director, Public Affairs & Member Services 

 

Page 38 

 12. California Counties Foundation Update 
 Chastity Benson | California Counties Foundation Manager 
 

Page 40 

 13. Information Items, No Presentation 
 CSAC Litigation Coordination Program Report 
 CSAC Institute Class Schedule 
 Board of Directors 2019 Calendar of Events 

 

 
Page 42 
Page 45 
Page 53 

 14. Public Comment 
 

 

4:00 PM ADJOURN  
*If requested, this agenda will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with a disability. Please contact Valentina 
Dzebic at vdzebic@counties.org or (916) 327-7500 if you require modification or accommodation in order to participate in the meeting. 

 
 

mailto:vdzebic@counties.org


1 | P a g e  

 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 
Board of Directors 

2019 
 

 

SECTION COUNTY DIRECTOR 
U Alameda County Keith Carson 

R Alpine County Terry Woodrow 

R Amador County Richard Forster 

S Butte County Debra Lucero 

R Calaveras County Merita Callaway 

R Colusa County Denise Carter 

U Contra Costa County John Gioia 

R Del Norte County Chris Howard 

R El Dorado County Sue Novasel 

U Fresno County Buddy Mendes 

R Glenn County John Viegas 

R Humboldt County Estelle Fennell 

S Imperial County Raymond Castillo 
R Inyo County Jeff Griffiths 

S Kern County Zack Scrivner 

R Kings County Craig Pedersen 

R Lake County Moke Simon 

R Lassen County Chris Gallagher 

U Los Angeles County Mark Ridley-Thomas 

R Madera County Brett Frazier 

S Marin County Damon Connolly 

R Mariposa County Marshall Long 

R Mendocino County  Carre Brown 

S Merced County Lee Lor 

R Modoc County Patricia Cullins 

R Mono County John Peters 

S Monterey County Luis Alejo 

S Napa County Belia Ramos 

R Nevada County Ed Scofield 

U Orange County Lisa Bartlett 

S Placer County Bonnie Gore 

R Plumas County Lori Simpson 

U Riverside County Chuck Washington 

SECTION 
U=Urban     
S=Suburban 
R=Rural 

President: Virginia Bass, Humboldt 
First Vice President: Lisa Bartlett, Orange 
Second Vice President: James Gore, Sonoma 
Immediate Past President: Leticia Perez, Kern 



2 | P a g e  

 

U Sacramento County  Susan Peters 

R San Benito County Jamie De La Cruz 

U San Bernardino County Janice Rutherford 

U San Diego County  Greg Cox 

U San Francisco City & County  TBA 

U San Joaquin County Bob Elliott 

S San Luis Obispo County Bruce Gibson 

U San Mateo County Carole Groom 

S Santa Barbara County Das Williams 
U Santa Clara County Susan Ellenberg 

S Santa Cruz County Bruce McPherson 

S Shasta County Leonard Moty 

R Sierra County  Lee Adams 

R Siskiyou County Ed Valenzuela 

S Solano County Erin Hannigan 

S Sonoma County Susan Gorin 

S Stanislaus County Vito Chiesa 

R Sutter County Dan Flores 

R Tehama County  Robert Williams 

R Trinity County Judy Morris 

S Tulare County Amy Shuklian 

R Tuolumne County Karl Rodefer 

U Ventura County Kelly Long 

S Yolo County Jim Provenza 

R Yuba County Doug Lofton 
 
 

 
 

ADVISORS 
 
Bruce Goldstein, County Counsels Association, Past President, Sonoma County 
Birgitta Corsello, California Association of County Executives, President, Solano County 

 
 

 
 

 
12/18 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



3 | P a g e  

 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 
BOARD OF DIRECTORS 

February 14, 2019 
Capitol Event Center | Sacramento 

Conference line: (800) 867-2581 | Code: 7500508# 
 

MINUTES 

 
1. Roll Call of the Executive Committee 

OFFICERS 

Virginia Bass | President 

Lisa Bartlett | 1st Vice President 

James Gore | 2nd Vice President 

Leticia Perez | Past President (remote) 

 

CSAC STAFF 

Graham Knaus | Executive Director 

Manuel Rivas, Jr. | Deputy Executive Director, 

Operations & Member Services 

Darby Kernan | Deputy Executive Director, 

Legislative Services 

 

ADVISORS 

Bruce Goldstein, County Counsels Association 

 

SUPERVISORS 

Luis Alejo | Monterey County 

Keith Carson | Alameda County 

Bob Elliott | San Joaquin County 

Carole Groom | San Mateo County 

Erin Hannigan | Solano County 

Kelly Long | Ventura County 

Bruce McPherson | Santa Cruz County 

Buddy Mendes | Fresno County (remote) 

Leonard Moty | Shasta County 

Craig Pedersen | Kings County 

Ed Valenzuela | Siskiyou County 

Chuck Washington | Riverside County 

Terry Woodrow | Alpine County 

Ed Scofield | Nevada County (Treasurer) 

 

2. Installation of the 2019 CSAC Board of Directors 

The CSAC Constitution indicates that each county board shall nominate one or more directors to 

serve on the CSAC Board of Directors to serve a one-year term, commencing with the Annual 

Conference, Staff presented a list of nominees received from counties for the representatives 

and alternates. 

A motion to approve the nominated members to the CSAC Board of Directors made by 

Supervisor Moty, Second by Supervisor Hannigan; motion carried unanimously. 

 

3. Roll Call of the Board of Directors 

Alameda  

Alpine  

Amador  

Butte  

Calaveras  

Colusa  

Contra Costa  

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

Keith Carson 

Terry Woodrow  

Richard Forster  

Debra Lucero  

Merita Callaway  

Denis Carter  

John Gioia  

Del Norte  

El Dorado  

Fresno  

Glenn  

Humboldt  

Imperial  

Inyo  

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

Chris Howard  

Sue Novasel  

Buddy Mendes (remote) 

John Viegas (remote) 

Absent  

Raymond Castillo  

Jeff Griffiths (remote  



4 | P a g e  

 

Kern 

Kings 

Lake 

Lassen 

Los Angeles 

Madera 

Marin 

Mariposa 

Mendocino 

Merced 

Modoc 

Mono 

Monterey 

Napa 

Nevada 

Orange 

Placer 

Plumas  

Riverside 

Sacramento 

San Benito 

San Bernardino 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

Zack Scrivner (remote) 

Craig Pedersen 

Absent 

Absent 

Absent 

Absent 

Damon Connolly (remote) 

Marshall Long (remote) 

Carre Brown (remote) 

Lee Lor (remote) 

Patricia Cullins (remote) 

John Peters 

Luis Alejo 

Belia Ramos 

Ed Scofield 

Lisa Bartlett 

Bonnie Gore 

Lori Simpson (remote) 

Chuck Washington 

Susan Peters  

Absent 

Janice Rutherford 

 

San Diego 

San Francisco 

San Joaquin 

San Luis Obispo 

San Mateo 

Santa Barbara 

Santa Clara 

Santa Cruz 

Shasta 

Sierra 

Siskiyou 

Solano 

Sonoma 

Stanislaus 

Sutter 

Tehama 

Trinity 

Tulare 

Tuolumne 

Ventura 

Yolo 

Yuba 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

– 

Greg Cox (remote) 

N/A 

Bob Elliott 

Bruce Gibson 

Carole Groom 

Das Williams 

Susan Ellenberg 

Bruce McPherson 

Leonard Moty 

Lee Adams 

Ed Valenzuela 

Erin Hannigan 

Absent 

Vito Chiesa (remote) 

Dan Flores 

Robert Williams 

Judy Morris 

Amy Shuklian 

Karl Rodefer 

Kelly Long 

Jim Provenza 

Doug Lofton 

The presence of a quorum was noted. 
 

4. Approval of Minutes from November 29, 2018 

A motion to approve the minutes from November 29, 2018 made by Supervisor Forster; 

second by Supervisor Moty; Calaveras County abstained; motion carried with a majority 

vote. 

 
5. Presentation of Distinguished Service Awards 

 
CSAC honored Senator Bill Dodd with the 2018 Distinguished Service Award for his bipartisan 
effort to prevent changes to Wildfire Liability that would have devastated local government and 
for coordinating with staff and leadership to bring a comprehensive deal which brought reforms 
and funding for forestry and fire prevention projects. CSAC also honored Assemblymember Jim 
Wood with the Distinguished Service Award for his partnership in developing wildfire prevention 
legislation, which was a major step forward that will protect counties, fire victims, and rate 
payers while keeping utilities fiscally sound and protecting against future fire events.  
 

6. Report on the Governor’s Budget 
 

Staff presented on the Governor’s budget, which was delivered on January 10, 2019. CSAC staff 
is working with the administration and Legislature on getting issues addressed before the May 
Revise.  



5 | P a g e  

 

7. State Budget Impact on Counties 

The CSAC Legislative Representatives presented on the budget impacts for their different policy 

areas.  

a. Administration Of Justice 

Staff presented that realignment numbers are up and that the numbers will be 

presented to counties within the next few weeks. No action pertaining to bail 

reform can be taken at this time. The budget contains $75 million for Judicial 

Council to give pretrial services. CSAC is doing outreach to criminal justice 

analysts to gauge county interest and push for more money in the budget. 

Juvenile Justice has been moved from the Department of Corrections to the 

Department of Healthcare Services. CSAC has created a Juvenile Justice working 

group. The AOJ team is also focused on making Trial Court Security more 

functional. After the 2011 realignment, Trial Court Security was realigned to 

counties, but the amount of funding provided has not kept up with personnel 

and security costs. 

 

b. Agriculture, Environment, and Natural Resources 

CSAC continues to work with the administration on climate and resiliency 

funding after the passage of SB 901. Staff is working on influencing the 

allocation of the funds, including additional equipment to CalFire, public radio 

operability and tree mortality assistance, to name a few. CSAC continues to fight 

against PG&E alongside counties. On the environmental side, CSAc is working 

with the Legislature to introduce new clean drinking water proposals to fund the 

clean-up of contaminated drinking water systems in disadvantaged 

communities. The Governor has proposed $1 billion in cap and trade spending, 

$25 million of which will go to waste aversion funds. The focus will be on the 

development of infrastructure to manage organic waste material. CSAC has 

requested the establishment of a commission to focus on the National Sword 

“blue sky” policy initiated by the Chinese government. We currently export 80% 

of our plastic and paper overseas and this new policy will drastically decrease 

that number. CSAC is working closely with the administration on additional 

resources for local jurisdictions to expand domestic markets in California. 

 

c. Government Finance Administration 

The Governor’s budget proposal included money for property tax backfills as a 

result of the wildfires and disasters. It seems apparent that the Governor’s 

office is committed to ensuring that all affected counties are fully reimbursed 

for property tax backfills for the year of the disaster as well as the following 

fiscal year. CSAC is working with the administration on situations affecting 

counties that go beyond property tax backfills, such as water systems. The GFA 

policy committee is committed to ensuring a complete count for the 2020 

Census. 

 



6 | P a g e  

 

d. Health and Human Services 

CSAC dedicated significant time negotiating a provision that required the 

Department of Finance to Realign In Home Supportive Services (IHHS).  The 

Realignment is positive for counties as it provides a reduced county 

commitment through revising the IHSS MOR and reduces the inflation factor 

from 7% to 4%. CSAC will remain focused on leading the effort to develop long-

term sustainability for counties to administer IHSS and other programs on 

behalf of the state. The governor’s budget had a major focus on childhood 

poverty and early education. The CMSP proposal, the long term JPA that 

counties use to contribute to their health realignment funding as a group to 

have medical services provided in their communities, was folded into the IHSS 

proposal. It included locking in the amount of funding that each pot gets, such 

as social services and mental health services. CSAC is unhappy with the 

proposal, which only offers a three month reserve, and is working with the 

CMSP Board and CHEAC to finalize. The CMSP Proposal also included expanding 

medical care to undocumented young adults ages 19-25 and increasing the 

sharing ratio for counties/state. The current sharing ration under AB 85 is 60% 

of health realignment finding that goes back to the state and 40% gets kept for 

the public health department – the proposal changes the sharing ration to 

75%/25% respectively. The governor wants regions to work on homelessness. 

CSAC will remain at the table to ensure that the budget is useful to counties. 

There is also a prescription drug effort where state and county entities that 

purchase prescription drugs may be able to join a collaborative and purchase 

the drugs in bulk, bringing prices down. Counties will be able to opt in or out.  

The Center for Medicare and Medicaid Services (CMS) has recouped $180.7 

million from California as a result of erroneous claims for service originating 

from county mental health plans in 2014, based on a recommendation by the 

U.S. Department of Health and Human Services Office of the Inspector General 

(OIG). CSAC staff has sent out documentation detailing the final results of the 

audit.  

 

e. Housing Land Use and Transportation 

The housing affordability and homelessness crisis is a high-priority issue for 

2019. There have been proposals to allocate additional resources to the housing 

supply, such as offering funds and incentives. Proposals include $750 million in 

one-time funding, $250 million of which would be used for planning activities 

and coming up with new short-term housing production goals. The rest would 

be allocated as incentives for local jurisdictions that see an increase in housing 

production plans. The governor wants to create a separate housing production 

goal at the local level. CSAC is keeping an eye on trailer bill language on the 

proposal and will continue to hold conversations with counties and the 

legislature to educate the legislature about the value of SB 1 funding. The 



7 | P a g e  

 

Housing, Land Use & Transportation team continues to educate delegations 

about what county responsibilities are. 

 

8. State & Federal Legislative Priorities for 2019 

Staff presented the CSAC 2019 legislative priorities, which serve as a guide-map of major issues 

that staff will focus on. The 2019 core priorities are on wildfire, housing, in-home supportive 

services, behavioral health and the 2020 census. The Board was given a detailed report on the 

legislative priorities that staff will focus on in 2019.  

 

A motion to approve the CSAC 2019 Legislative Priorities as presented by staff made by 

Supervisor Long; second by Supervisor Rodefer; motion carried unanimously. 

 Legislative Platform Changes 
The CSAC Policy Committees meet during the Annual Conference and review/make changes to 

the Legislative Platforms, which act as a guide to the issues that staff can then advocate for on 

behalf of counties. The committees presented the changes to their Legislative Platform Chapters 

for approval by the Board of Directors.  

a. AOJ 

The committee added data collection language, modified bail language to ensure local 

flexibility and changed alcohol and drug treatment services to alcohol and substance use 

disorder treatment in section two of their Legislative and Executive Matters: General 

Principles for Local Corrections.  In the section four, the Judicial Branch Matters, they 

changed alcohol and drug treatment services to alcohol and substance use disorder 

treatment. In Section five, Family Violence, a statement was added that family violence 

disproportionately impacts disadvantaged communities.  

 

b. AENR 

The committee proposed a language changes in chapters three, section twelve, dealing with 

enforcement and prevention of environmental incidents. Formatting changes were also 

made in chapter three to promote consistency across the chapters, including incorporating 

previously adopted medical marijuana policy into the chapter. Formatting and 

organizational changes were also made to chapters four and seven.   

 

c. GFA 

The committee provided some reformatting and grammatical changes to chapters five, nine, 

twelve, and thirteen. In Chapter eight, the committee incorporated language to the Public 

Retirement Section, incorporating language regarding CSAC’s opposition of divestment 

mandates.  

 

d. HHS 

The committee proposed the removal of out-of-date language from chapter six to help 

streamline the platform. Grammatical and formatting changes were also made. Chapter 



8 | P a g e  

 

eleven included reformatting and grammatical edits, as well as the removal of out-of-date 

language. 

 

e. HLT 

The committee proposed an addition to section six of chapter seven to facilitate the 

development or funding of affordable homes by counties and cities. The rest of the chapters 

did not include any substantive changes, other than minor formatting and grammatical 

edits.  

A motion to approve the Legislative Platform Changes as proposed by the policy 
committees made by Supervisor Rodefer; Second by Supervisor Gibson. Motion carried 
unanimously.  
 

9. Institute for Local Government (ILG) 

CSAC serves as one of three parent companies for ILG along with League of Cities and Special 

Districts Association. ILG is going through a substantial transition to be more responsive. They 

have just welcomed a new Executive Director, Erica Manuel, who comes from SMUD and will 

address the Board of Directors at a later meeting. ILG does FPPC & Ethics work related to 

elected officials.  

 

10. Federal Update 

CSAC’s Federal Lobbyist Joe Krahn from Paragon Government Relations gave the Board of 

Directors an update on the Federal Budget. The budget that was proposed following the longest 

government shutdown is expected to be signed by the President, keeping the government open 

or the rest of the session. The final budget deal (HJ RES 31) provides $1.38 billion in spending for 

55 miles of new fencing along the Rio Grande Valley for the US-Mexico border. The agreement 

also includes funding for other border security measures, including investments in technology, 

personnel and equipment. HJ RES 31 also provides funding for a number of key programs that 

are important to California’s interest, including Wildland Firefighting, HUD’s Homeless 

Assistance Grants, Highway and Bridge Discretionary, State Criminal Alien Assistance Program 

and Payments-in-lieu-of-Taxes. Paragon will prepare a comprehensive analysis of the final fiscal 

year 2019 spending package and will distribute it to the Board of Directors.  

 

11. CSAC Finance Corporation Update 

CSAC FC President Supervisor Leonard Moty and CSAC FC CEO Alan Fernandes updated the 

Board on the Finance Corporation. The corporation completed its elections and is excited to 

welcome their Board Members: Supervisor Richard Forster from Amador County, County 

Administrative Officer, David Twa from Contra Costa County, Vernon Billy, Executive Director of 

the California School Boards Association, and Elba Gonzalez, the Executive Director of Children’s 

Health Initiative in Napa County. The Corporation is financially in good shape, and will give 

further details after their annual meeting. Six counties have joined the California Cannabis 

Authority, the Joint Powers Authority that allows local governments to develop and manage a 

statewide data platform to assist with regulating commercial cannabis activity. The participating 

counties include Humboldt, Mendocino, Monterey, Yolo, Inyo, and San Luis Obispo.  



9 | P a g e  

 

 

CSAC has 33 Platinum Partners that provide $25,000 or more annually to the CSAC Finance 

Corporation. The Board was addressed by one of the Platinum Partners, Jim Freeze from Aon. 

Aon is a professional services firm that works with counties on risk management, health 

services, pension benefits, and other areas. Aon’s partnership with CSAC is focused on retiree 

healthcare plans.  

 

12. Communications Update: Supporting our 2019 Legislative Priorities 

The communications team has been committed to working alongside the legislative staff to get 

CSAC’s message out to counties and state-wide. Staff continues to do great work on informing 

the membership on a regular basis through the weekly Bulletin, Social Media, Email 

Correspondence, Regional Meetings, and major conference. Registration for the 2019 CSAC 

Legislative Conference will go live next week.  

 

13. California Counties Foundation Update 

Supervisor Amy Shuklian from Tulare County was announced as a new California Counties 

Foundation Board member. The Foundation continues to focus on Excellence in County 

Governance through the CSAC Institute as well as the Results-First partnership with the Pew 

Charitable Trust. The Board was provided a schedule of upcoming courses offered through the 

CSAC Institute. 

 

14. NACo Western Interstate Region 2020 Conference 

The CSAC Member Services team is working closely with Mariposa County in securing a host role 

for the 2020 NACo WIR Conference for May 13-15, 2020, which generally brings between 500-

600 participants. Requirements are stringent and CSAC is working with Mariposa staff to secure 

the location. CSAC is interested in partnering with RCRC to co-host. The WIR Board will make a 

decision by next week. Hosting in 2020 would be important for California since Supervisor Kevin 

Cann from Mariposa County will be president of WIR, providing a good opportunity for 

California to lead in his area during his term. 

 

The meeting was adjourned. The next Board meeting will be April 25th in Sacramento, CA. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



10 | P a g e  

 

 



11 | P a g e  

 

 

 
 

Update on Activities 
April 2019 

 
The Institute for Local Government (ILG) promotes good government at the local 
level with practical, impartial and easy-to-use resources for California communities. 
ILG’s strong affiliation with the California State Association of Counties, the 
California Special Districts Association and the League of California Cities helps 
enhance collaboration and promote best practices among local agencies. ILG 
provides education in the form of technical assistance, trainings, webinars and 
online and print resources in an effort to assist local leaders to govern openly, 
effectively, and ethically; work collaboratively; and foster healthy and sustainable 
communities. ILG’s current program areas include: leadership & governance, public 
engagement, youth and civics education and sustainable communities.  
 
To learn more about our programs and resources visit www.ca-ilg.org, or connect 
with us through our newsletter or social media through Facebook, Twitter or 
LinkedIn.  

 
 
Get Recognition for Your County’s Sustainability Efforts – Beacon 
Award Applications Now Open 
 
For over a decade, ILG’s Beacon Program has provided a framework to help local 
governments implement energy and climate action initiatives in their communities, 
as well as recognize local governments for these efforts. Last year, ILG honored over 
40 cities and counties with awards.  
 
ILG recently opened the application for 2019 award consideration. Participating 
counties can apply for awards in the following categories: Agency Energy Savings, 
Natural Gas Savings, Community Greenhouse Gas Reductions, Agency Greenhouse 
Gas Reductions and Sustainability Best Practices.  
 
For more information about how to participate in the program, or to apply for 
awards, visit www.ca-ilg.org/BeaconProgram.  

 

ILG is Available to Help Counties with Affordable Housing Needs 

The California Department of Housing and Community Development (HCD) has 
released the SB 2 Planning Grants Notice of Funding Availability (NOFA)  

1400 K Street, Sacramento CA 95814-3916 
www.ca-ilg.org 

http://www.ca-ilg.org/
http://www.ca-ilg.org/ilg-news
https://www.facebook.com/InstituteForLocalGovt?ref=hl
mailto:@InstLocGov
https://www.linkedin.com/company/institute-for-local-government?trk=company_logo
http://www.ca-ilg.org/BeaconProgram
http://www.hcd.ca.gov/grants-funding/active-funding/planning-grants.shtml


12 | P a g e  

 

for approximately $123 million. The Planning Grants Program provides one-time, non-competitive grants 
to local governments to update a variety of planning documents and processes that streamline housing 
approvals and accelerate housing production. 

ILG is working with PlaceWorks to help local governments secure this funding by identifying projects and 
tools that will help increase housing production. Funding is available for: 

 Targeted General Plan Updates 
 Community Plans and Specific Plans 
 Zoning Updates and By-Right Zoning for Housing 
 Objective Design Standards 
 Accessory Dwelling Unit Regulations 
 Streamlined Environmental Analyses 
 Process Updates to Improve and Expedite Local Permitting 

Contact Karalee Browne at kbrowne@ca-ilg.org for more information. 

TIERS Program Helps Counties Master Public Engagement 
 
Community engagement is a vital component of many county projects and initiatives. Whether your 
county is updating its general plan, planning for new parks or green spaces, completing a climate action 
plan or determining priorities for limited resources – community engagement is likely part of that 
process. ILG’s TIERS workshop can help you design and implement community engagement approaches 
that will help you meet those goals. ILG’s interactive training program can help county staff 
operationalize community outreach efforts, while providing private, customized consulting to address 
your agency’s unique priorities.   
 
ILG is hosting a TIERS Public Engagement Workshop on April 25-26 in Danville. As of early April, Santa 
Clara County has been confirmed to participate.   
 
ILG will host the next TIERS training in San Diego this fall. For more information, visit www.ca-
ilg.org/TIERS or contact Hanna Stelmakhovych, Program Coordinator, at 916-658-8221 or 
hstelmakhovych@ca-ilg.org. 
 

ILG Partners with Schools to Engage the Next Generation of Leaders 
 
ILG’s “Picture Yourself in Local Government” curriculum will be revised in 2019 to match the new 
California Department of Education’s History-Social Science Framework. This resource offers short and 
long-term strategies to help local governments engage young people in their communities. The 
curriculum supports students’ understanding about the functions of county government and acquaints 
them with the roles of staff and officials planting the seeds for future civic engagement including 
professional opportunities in the public sector. Contact Randi Kay Stephens at rstephens@ca-ilg.org for 
more information.  

 
ILG Board Welcomes New Directors 
 
ILG’s Board of Directors met in Sacramento on March 15 to discuss current projects and initiatives, 
emerging issues and strategic planning. 

http://placeworks.com/
mailto:kbrowne@ca-ilg.org
http://www.ca-ilg.org/TIERS
http://www.ca-ilg.org/TIERS
mailto:hstelmakhovych@ca-ilg.org
mailto:rstephens@ca-ilg.org


13 | P a g e  

 

In 2019, ILG will have two new county representatives on the Board: 

 Lee Lor, Supervisor from Merced County has joined the Board as the CSAC liaison 

 Sue Novasel, Supervisor from El Dorado County  
 
Additional ILG Board meeting dates are: 

 Friday, May 31 (Sacramento) 

 Thursday and Friday, August 15-16 (Newport Beach) 

 Friday, November 15 (Sacramento) 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



14 | P a g e  

 

Administration of Justice Policy Committee  
2019 CSAC Legislative Conference 
Wednesday, April 24th  2:15 PM – 3:45 PM 
Hyatt Regency, 1109 L Street  Regency C 
Sacramento, California 95814 

 

 
 
 

Supervisor Alfred Pedroza, Napa County, Chair 
Supervisor Kelly Long, Ventura County, Vice Chair 

 
 

2:15 p.m. I. Welcome and Introductions 

Supervisor Alfredo Pedroza, Napa County, Chair 
Supervisor Kelly Long, Ventura County, Vice Chair 
 

2:20 p.m. II. California Department of Corrections and Rehabilitation: 
Opportunities to Collaborate 

Ralph Diaz, Secretary, CA Department of Corrections & 
Rehabilitation 

 

2:50 p.m. 
 

III. Developments in Juvenile Justice 

 

a. Moving Division of Juvenile Justice to Health and Human Services 

Dan Seeman, Deputy Cabinet Secretary, Office of Governor 
Newsom 

 

b. Update CSAC Juvenile Hall Work Group 

Supervisor Alfredo Pedroza, Napa County, Chair 

Jessica Devencenzi, Legislative Representative 

 

3:35 p.m. IV. Legislative Update 

Jessica Devencenzi, Legislative Representative 
Stanicia Boatner, Legislative Analyst 

3:45 p.m. V. Adjournment 
 

 
 
 
 
 



15 | P a g e  

 

 

Agriculture, Environment and Natural Resources Policy Committee  
2019 CSAC Legislative Conference 
Room: Regency A 
Thursday, April 25th  10:45 AM – 12:15 PM 

 

 
AGENDA 

 
Supervisor Sherri Brennan, Tuolumne County, Chair 

Supervisor Carole Groom, San Mateo County, Vice Chair 
 

 

10:45 – 10:55 a.m. I. Welcome and Introductions 

Supervisor Sherri Brennan, Tuolumne County, Chair 
Supervisor Carole Groom, San Mateo County, Vice Chair 
 

10:55 – 11:20 a.m. II. California’s Looming Recycling Crisis: Challenges and Solutions 

Katerina Robinson, Legislative Director, Office of Senator Nancy 
Skinner 

 

11:20 – 11:50 a.m. 
 

III. The State of Cannabis: Regulation, Taxation and the Illicit Market 

Nicole Elliott, Senior Advisor for Cannabis, Governor’s Office of 
Business and Economic Development 

Hassan Sarsour, Paragon Government Relations 

 

 

11:50 – 12:05 p.m. IV. Wildfire Resiliency: Governor’s Five Point Plan 

Governor’s Office Representative 
 

12:05 – 12:15 p.m. V. AENR Legislative Priorities Status Update 
Cara Martinson, Senior Legislative Representative 
 

12:15 p.m.  
 

VI. Closing Comments and Adjournment 

Supervisor Sherri Brennan, Tuolumne County, Chair 

Supervisor Carole Groom, San Mateo County, Vice Chair  
 

 
 
 
 
 



16 | P a g e  

 

Government Finance & Administration Policy Committee 
CSAC Legislative Conference 
Thursday, April 25  9:00 AM – 10:30 AM 
Hyatt Regency Sacramento  Regency A Ballroom 
Sacramento County, California 

 

 
Supervisor Judy Morris, Trinity County, Chair 

Supervisor Chuck Washington, Riverside County, Vice Chair 
  

9:00 a.m. I. Welcome and Introductions 

Supervisor Judy Morris, Trinity County, Chair 
Supervisor Chuck Washington, Riverside County, Vice-Chair 

9:05 a.m. II. Redistricting:  
Who Should Draw the Lines? And Where? 

Leticia Perez, Supervisor, Kern County 
Das Williams, Supervisor, Santa Barbara County 
Elaine Howle, California State Auditor 
Nicolas Heidorn, Policy & Legal Director, California Common Cause 

9:40 a.m. 
 

III. The Once and Future Sales Tax:  
Its Importance to Counties and Possible Future Reforms 

Fiona Ma, California State Treasurer 

Deana Carrillo, Executive Director, CAEATFA 

Rebecca Wachsberg, Chief of Staff, Senator Mike McGuire 

Ronda Paschal, Deputy Legislative Secretary, Governor’s Office of Legislative 
Affairs 

Andy Nickerson, President / CEO, HdL Companies 

 

10:25 a.m. IV. Legislative Update 

Geoff Neill, Legislative Representative, CSAC 
Josh Gauger, Legislative Representative, CSAC 

10:30 a.m. V. Adjourn 
 
 
 
*All Speakers Invited. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



17 | P a g e  

 

 

Health and Human Services Policy Committee 
Thursday, April 25  10:45 AM – 12:15 PM 
Regency EF  Hyatt Regency Sacramento  
1209 L Street  Sacramento, CA 95814 

 

 
 

Supervisor Das Williams, Santa Barbara County, Chair 
Supervisor Jeff Griffiths, Inyo County, Vice Chair 

 
Note: This policy committee meeting is an in-person meeting only  
and is being held as part of the CSAC 2019 Legislative Conference. 

 

10:45 a.m. I. Welcome and Introductions 

Supervisor Das Williams, Committee Chair, Santa Barbara County 
Supervisor Jeff Griffiths, Committee Vice Chair, Inyo County 

10:50 a.m. II. In-Home Supportive Services (IHSS) Proposal Next Steps 

Supervisor Belia Ramos, IHSS Working Group Co-Chair, Napa County 
Supervisor John Peters, IHSS Working Group Co-Chair, Mono County 

11:10 a.m. 
 

III. County Partner Budget Requests 

Michelle Gibbons, Executive Director, County Health Executives Association 
of California 

Scarlet Hughes, Executive Director, California State Association of Public 
Administrators, Public Guardians, and Public Conservators 

Eileen Cubanski, Director of Budget and Fiscal Policy, County Welfare 
Directors Association of California  

 

11:35 a.m. IV. Spotlight: Local Child Support Services 

Greg Wilson, Executive Director, Child Support Directors Association 
Melinda Self, Director, Contra Costa County Department of Child Support 
Services 

11:50 a.m. V. Federal Landscape and Policy Changes 
Tom Joseph, Paragon Government Relations 

12:00 p.m.  
 

VI. 2019 California for All: Policy Maker for the New Administration 

Tam Ma, Deputy Legislative Secretary, Office of Governor Gavin Newsom 
 

Informational Item VII. Health and Human Services Legislation So Far: Hundreds of Bills and 
Counting  

 
 
 



18 | P a g e  

 

Housing, Land Use and Transportation Policy Committee 
CSAC Legislative Conference 
Thursday, April 25  9:00 AM – 10:30 AM 
Regency EF  Hyatt Regency Sacramento  
Sacramento County, California 

 

 
 

Supervisor Oscar Villegas, Yolo County, Chair 
Supervisor Denise Carter, Colusa County, Vice Chair 

 
 

9:00 a.m. I. Welcome and Introductions 

Supervisor Oscar Villegas, Chair 
Supervisor Denise Carter, Vice-Chair 

9:05 a.m. II. Introduction to Governor’s Tribal Negotiations Advisor 

Anna Naimark, Tribal Negotiations Advisor, Governor’s Office 

9:20 a.m. 
 

III. Governor Newsom’s Housing Budget Proposals 

Mark Tollefson, Deputy Cabinet Secretary, Governor’s Office 

Attachment One: CSAC Summary of Housing Planning Trailer Bill 

 

9:40 a.m. IV. Housing Affordability & Impact Fees – ACTION ITEM 

Presentation on Statewide Community Infrastructure Program 
James Hamill, Managing Director, California Statewide Communities 
Development Authority 
 
Consideration of Policy Principles on Housing Impact Fees 
Chris Lee, CSAC Legislative Representative 
Attachment Two: Housing Impact Fee Policy Principles Memo 

10:10 a.m. V. Consider Tenant Protection Legislation – ACTION ITEM 
Chris Lee, CSAC Legislative Representative 
Attachment Three: Tenant Protection Legislation Memo 

10:30 a.m.  
 

VI. Information Only – Priority Legislation 

Attachment Four: Bills with Active and Pending Positions 
 

10:30 a.m. VII.    Closing Comments and Adjournment 
 Supervisor Oscar Villegas, Chair 
Supervisor Denise Carter, Vice Chair 

 
 
 
 
 



19 | P a g e  

 

 
 

April 25, 2019 
 
 
TO:  CSAC Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Ed Scofield | CSAC Treasurer 
  Graham Knaus | CSAC Executive Director 
  Manuel Rivas, Jr. | CSAC Deputy Executive Director, Operations & Member Services 
 
SUBJECT: CSAC FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget 

 

As the Board-appointed Treasurer, I present to you the CSAC Proposed Budget for Fiscal Year 2019-
20.  The budget plan reflects the expenditures needed to advance CSAC’s mission to serve California’s 
58 counties by developing and equipping county leaders to better serve their communities; 
effectively advocating and partnering with State and Federal governments for appropriate policies, 
laws and funding; and communicating value of the critical work being accomplished by counties.   The  
FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget was approved by the CSAC Executive Committee on April 4, 2019 and is 
hereby submitted for your consideration and adoption.    

 

Recommendation:  Adopt the CSAC FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget.  
 

Overall, CSAC’s fiscal condition remains solid.  The budget plan continues to build on initiatives 
implemented over the past couple of years to ensure that the Association’s fiscal condition is 
strengthened through the development and implementation of sound policies such as the Operational 
Reserve Policy, establishment of the Capital Improvement Fund, and other fiscal and accounting 
procedures to improve internal controls.    
 

The FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget maintains membership dues at the same level for the sixth 
consecutive year.  In addition, of significant note, the increase in projected year-end fund balance for  
FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 reflect the success of the aforementioned polices and operational 
efficiencies and the continued strong performance by the CSAC Finance Corporation.  The budget 
proposes a $250,000 contribution to the Capital Improvement Fund and projects the Operational 
Reserve to be $5.7 million by the end of FY 2019-20. 
 

Specifically, the FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget is designed to meet the following organizational 
priorities:   
 

 Align Association expenditures with projected revenues while meeting critical objectives across 
all areas including advocacy, communications, member services, and the California Counties 
Foundation;  

 Support all CSAC advocacy priorities, conferences, county visits and regional meetings, the 
Challenge Awards program, and a financial contribution to the California Counties Foundation 
which supports the CSAC Institute and its five campuses; 

 Set aside 5% of revenues to allow appropriate operating margin and addition to reserves; 

 Provide authority for potential merit increases; and 

 Contribute to the Capital Improvement Program to better plan, manage and maintain the CSAC 
building.  



20 | P a g e  

 

Highlights of the CSAC FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget 

 
Revenues 
 

 No dues increase.  Membership dues remain flat for the sixth consecutive year and represent 
approximately one-third of total revenues to support CSAC operations and advocacy priorities.   

 Finance Corporation Participation Program contribution increases to $4.3 million. 

 Corporate Associates Program is projected to generate $525,000 in net revenue.   

 Projected increase of $125,000 in administrative revenue fees for staff and resources for 
county welfare data systems management support.     

 
Expenses 
 

 Salaries and employee benefits reflect increased retirement contribution rates, a 10% increase 
in health care plans, nominal cost of doing business increases to other employee benefits, and 
Executive Director authority to approve salary increases as merited. 

 Sets aside funding to establish an Employee Professional Development Initiative to continue 
investing in staff retention, professional growth and continuing education, 

 Continues to fund the CSAC Internship Program to develop new talent and spark interest in 
local government public service.   

 Includes a $40,000 increase in the budgeted contribution to the California Counties Foundation 
to support the continued growth of the CSAC Institute.  This will enable support for the main 
Sacramento campus, as well as a rotating satellite campus model to increase accessibility of 
leadership and professional development in counties throughout the State.  For FY 2019-20, 
the Foundation will fund and operate satellite campus locations in Shasta-Tehama Counties, 
Tulare County, Santa Cruz County, and a new campus in San Diego County.   

 
Reserves 
 

 The Operating Reserve at the beginning of FY 2019-20 is projected at $5.3 million which 
exceeds the 6-month reserve policy target.   

 The Capital Improvement Program Fund is projected at $1.0 million beginning in FY 2019-20.   
 
Attachments:  The Proposed Budget package includes the following documents:  

 CSAC FY 2019-20 Proposed Budget  
o Definitions and explanation of budget accounts. 

 Projected Year-end Reserves and Capital Improvement Fund Chart   

 FY 2018-19 Financial Statement  

 FY 2018-19 and FY 2019-20 Budget Comparison 

 FY 2019-20 Salary Schedule  
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 



21 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 



22 | P a g e  

 

 



23 | P a g e  

 

 



24 | P a g e  

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



25 | P a g e  

 

 
 



26 | P a g e  

 

 
 



27 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
 
 

CALIFORNIA STATE ASSOCIATION OF COUNTIES 
SALARY SCHEDULE  

FY 2019-20 

  
 
 
          

POSITION TITLE   SALARY RANGE 
Executive Director  $  290,000    350,000 
Deputy Executive Director  $  175,000    275,000 
Director of Public Affairs and Member Services  $  150,000    185,000 
Senior Legislative Representative  $  150,000    175,000 
Legislative Representative  $  110,000    150,000 
Principal Policy & Fiscal Analyst  $  95,000    125,000 
Member Affairs Manager  $  90,000    125,000 
Financial Controller $ 85,000  100,000 
Senior Legislative Analyst  $  85,000    100,000 
Foundation Operations Manager  $  80,000    100,000 
Project Manager  $  70,000    100,000 
Program Manager  $  70,000    100,000 

Print Services Manager  $  70,000    90,000 
Communications Manager  $  70,000    90,000 
Legislative Analyst  $  65,000    85,000 
Video Production Supervisor  $  65,000    85,000 
Training Program Coordinator  $  60,000    80,000 
Meeting Planner   $  55,000    70,000 
Accountant 
Executive Assistant                                                                

 $ 
$  

50,000 
45,000    

70,000 
70,000 

Video Production Specialist  $  45,000    70,000 
Administrative Assistant  $  45,000    70,000 
Legislative Assistant  $  45,000    70,000 

Administrative and Meetings Assistant  $  45,000    65,000 

Office Assistant/Database Specialist  $  45,000    65,000 
Facilities Specialist/Maintenance Manager (P/T)  $  25,000    40,000 

Print Services Assistant  $  25,000    40,000 
 
 
 



28 | P a g e  

 

 
 
April 25, 2019 
 
TO:  CSAC Board of Directors 
 
FROM:  Leonard Moty, President 
  Alan Fernandes, Chief Executive Officer 
 
SUBJECT: CSAC Finance Corporation Update 

 
Mission Statement 
 
To provide a broad array of finance, investment, insurance, and purchasing services to benefit California 
counties and related public agencies. 
 
Overview 
 
The California State Association of Counties (CSAC) formed the CSAC Finance Corporation in 1986 to 
provide municipal finance service to counties. Since its inception, the CSAC Finance Corporation has 
grown to be the premier provider of a variety of cost-saving programs and services to counties and 
other local governments throughout California.  
 
CSAC Finance Corporation Commitment & Priorities 
 
Dedicated to the business of improving public services for counties and their constituents. 
 

 To Provide Financial Support to CSAC 
 

 Create and Maintain Innovative Public Services and Products 

 
 Collaborate with Complementary national and State Organizations 

 
 Maintain Strong Relationships with our Service Providers 

 
CSAC Finance Corporation Programs (See Attached) 
 
The annual CSAC Finance Corporation Board Meeting occurred last week in Monterey County from April 
17–19th. At this meeting, the CSAC Finance Corporation Board approved the FY 2019-20 budget, which 
included the annual grant to support the operations of CSAC. Additionally, we elected officers and 
planned the year ahead. 
 
Corporate Associates Program Presentation – Dominion Voting Systems 



29 | P a g e  

 

 

The CSAC Finance Corporation offers value-added products and services to California’s counties, their employees and retirees as well as 
other forms of local government. Our programs are designed to assist county governments in reducing costs, improving services, and 

increasing efficiency. Our offerings provide the best overall local government pricing and the revenue generated by the CSAC Finance 
Corporation supports CSAC’s advocacy efforts on behalf of California’s counties. 
 

Program Summary 
 
 
 
 
 

Financing 

CSCDA                                              Laura Labanieh www.cscda.org 
The California Statewide Communities Development Authority (CSCDA) was created in 1988, under 
California’s Joint Exercise of Powers Act, to provide California’s local governments with an effective 
tool for the timely financing of community-based public benefit projects. Currently, more than 500 
cities, counties and special districts have become Program Participants to CSCDA – which serves as 
their conduit issuer and provides access to an efficient mechanism to finance locally-approved 
projects. CSCDA helps local governments build community infrastructure, provide affordable 
housing, create jobs, make access available to quality healthcare and education, and more. 
 

 Deferred Compensation 
Nationwide                                     Laura Labanieh                             www.nrsforu.com 
The Nationwide Retirement Solutions program is the largest deferred compensation program in 
the country for county employees. In California, over 65,000 county employees save for their 
retirement using this flexible, cost-effective employee benefit program. This program is the only 
one with a national oversight committee consisting of elected and appointed county officials 
who are plan participants. Additionally, an advisory committee comprised of California county 
officials provides additional feedback and oversight for this supplemental retirement program. 
Currently 30 counties in California have chosen Nationwide to help their employees save for 
retirement. 

 Investing 
CalTRUST                                         Laura Labanieh                             www.caltrust.org 
The Investment Trust of California (CalTRUST) is a JPA established by public agencies in California for 
the purpose of pooling and investing local agency funds - operating reserves as well as bond 
proceeds. CalTRUST offers the option of five accounts to provide participating agencies with a 
convenient method of pooling funds – a liquidiy fund, a government fund, a money market fund, a 
short-term, and a medium-term. Each account seeks to attain as high a level of current income as is 
consistent with the preservation of principle. This program is a great option to diversify 
investments! 
 

 Discounted Prescription Drugs 
Coast2CoastRx                               Jim Manker                                    www.coast2coastrx.com 
The Coast2Coast Discount Prescription Card is available at no-cost to the county or taxpayers 
and will save county residents up to 75% on brand name and generic prescription drugs. The 
Coast2Coast program is already being used by over 35 counties in California. Not only does it 
offer savings to users, your county will receive $1.25 from Coast2Coast for every prescription 
filled by a cardholder. 
 

 Cyber Security and Technology 
Synoptek                                         Laura Labanieh                             www.synoptek.org 
The CSAC FC and Synoptek have partnered to offer a human firewall training program and fraud 
assessment. The human firewall program is a training program whereby a comprehensive approach 
is initiated that integrates baseline testing, using mock attacks, engaging interactive web-based 
training, and continuous assessment through simulated phishing attacks to build a more resilient 
and secure organization. Synoptek offers a wide range of security technology offerings to aid your 
county in remaining vigilant and secure. 

http://www.cscda.org/


30 | P a g e  

 

 Property Tax Payment Portal 
Easy Smart Pay                               Alan Fernandes                             www.easysmartpay.net 
East Smart Pay is a product of Smart Easy Pay, a corporation formed by the CSAC Finance 
Corporation to help residents throughout California streamline their property tax payments. 
Through the Easy Smart Pay platform residents can pay their property taxes in installments via ACH 
or credit card with preferred processing fees. This program is currently being piloted in San Luis 
Obispo County. 
 

 Revenue Collection 
CalTRECS                                         Jim Manker                                     www.csacfc.org 
The CSAC FC has joined with NACo FSC to develop the California Tax Recovery and Compliance 
System (CalTRECS) program to help counties collect outstanding debts in a timely, cost-effective 
manner. The debt offset service allows counties and other local government to compile and submit 
their delinquencies for offset against pending state personal income tax refunds and lottery winnings. 

 Cannabis Compliance 
CCA                                                   Alan Fernandes                             www.cca.ca.gov 
The California Cannabis Authority is a Joint Powers Authority established by county governments to 
develop and manage a statewide data platform. The platform will assist local governments that are 
regulating commercial cannabis activity by consolidating data from different channels into one 
resource to help local governments ensure maximum regulatory and tax compliance. In addition, the 
platform can help to facilitate financial services to the cannabis industry by linking willing financial 
institutions with interested businesses, and by providing critical data to ensure that all transactions 
and deposits are from legal transactions. 

 Information & Referral Services 
211 California                                 Laura Labanieh                             www.211california.org 
The CSAC FC manages 211 California which is a network of the 211 systems throughout California. 
These critical agencies serve county residents by providing trusted connectivity to community, 
health, and social services. During times of disaster and recovery, 211 organizations are vital to assist 
residents find critical services and information. 
 

 
CSAC Finance Corporation 

Board of Directors 
 

Leonard Moty, Shasta County – President 
Graham Knaus, CSAC – Vice President 

Ryan Alsop, Kern County 
Vernon Billy, Public Member 
Greg Cox, San Diego County 

Jim Erb, Kings County 
Richard Forster, Amador County 
Elba Gonzalez, Public Member 

Susan Muranishi, Alameda County 
Billy Rutland, Public Member 

David Twa, Contra Costa County 

 
 

CSAC Finance Corporation 
1100 K Street, Suite 101 * Sacramento, CA 95814 

www.csacfc.org  
 

http://www.csacfc.org/


31 | P a g e  

 

 
 

PLATINUM Partners (as of 4.1.2019) 
1. Aetna 

Tien Phan, CA Market Lead, Public Sector 
2850 Shadelands Dr. 
Walnut Creek, CA 94598 
(925) 948-4945  
PhanT@aetna.com 
www.aetna.com 

6.    CGI 
Monica Cardiel Cortez, Partner, Consultant 
621 Capitol Mall, Suite 1525 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 830-1100 
monica.cardielcortez@cgi.com 
www.CGI.com 

 

2.  Alliant Insurance Services, Inc. 
Nazi Arshi, Senior Vice President 
1301 Dove St. Suite 200 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
(949) 660-8110 
narshi@alliant.com 
www.alliant.com 

7.    Coast2Coast Rx 
Marty Dettelbach, Chief Marketing Officer 
5229 Newstead Manor Lane 
Raleigh, NC 27606  
(919) 465-0097 
marty@c2crx.com 
www.coast2coastrx.com 
 

3. Anthem Blue Cross 
Michael Prosio, Regional Vice President, State 
Affairs 
1121 L Street, Suite 500 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 403-0527 
Michael.prosio@anthem.com 
www.anthem.com 

8.    CSAC Excess Insurance Authority 
Rick Brush, Chief Member Services Officer 
75 Iron Point Circle, Suite 200 
Folsom, California  95630 
(916) 850-7378 
rbrush@CSAC-EIA.org 
www.csac-eia.org 

4. AON 
Craig A. Isaak, Public Sector Market Leader 
4 Overlook Point 
Lincolnshire, IL 60069 
(630) 723-4568 
craig.isaak@aon.com 
www.aon.com 

9.    Deckard Technologies, Inc. 
Neil Senturia, CEO 
2223 Avenida de la Playa, Suite 206 
La Jolla, CA 92037 
(858) 754-3201 
neil@deckardtech.com 
www.deckardtech.com 

 

5. California Statewide Communities Development 
Authority 
Catherine Bando, Executive Director 
1700 North Broadway, Suite 405 
Walnut Creek, CA 94596 
(800) 531-7476 
cbando@cscda.org 
www.cscda.org 

10. DLR Group 
Dan Sandall, Business Development 
1050 20th Street, Suite 250 
Sacramento, CA 95811 
(310) 804-7997 
dsandall@dlrgroup.com 
www.dlrgroup.com 

 11. Dominion Voting Systems 
Steve Bennett, Regional Sales Manager 
26561 Amhurst Court 
Loma Linda, CA 92354 
(909) 362-1715 
steven.bennett@dominionvoting.com 
www.dominionvoting.com 

mailto:PhanT@aetna.com
http://www.aetna.com/
mailto:monica.cardielcortez@cgi.com
http://www.cgi.com/
mailto:narshi@alliant.com
http://www.alliant.com/
mailto:marty@c2crx.com
http://www.coast2coastrx.com/
mailto:Michael.prosio@anthem.com
http://www.anthem.com/
mailto:rbrush@CSAC-EIA.org
http://www.csac-eia.org/
mailto:craig.isaak@aon.com
http://www.aon.com/
mailto:neil@deckardtech.com
http://www.deckardtech.com/
mailto:cbando@cscda.org
http://www.cscda.org/
mailto:dsandall@dlrgroup.com
http://www.dlrgroup.com/
mailto:steven.bennett@dominionvoting.com
http://www.dominionvoting.com/


32 | P a g e  

 

12. Election Systems & Software 
Bryan Hoffman, VP of Corporate Sales 
11208 John Galt Blvd. 
Omaha, NE 68137  
(315) 559-1653 
bjhoffman@essvote.com 
www.essvote.com 

 

18. NextEra Energy 
Kerry Hattevik 
Regional Director, West Government Affairs 
829 Arlington Blvd. 
El Cerrito, CA 94530 
(510) 898-1847 
Kerry.hattevik@NEE.com 
www.nexteraenergy.com 

 

13. Enterprise Fleet Management 
Lisa Holmes, State of CA Contract Manager 
199 N. Sunrise Ave. 
Roseville, CA 95747 
(916) 787-4733 
Lisa.m.holmes@ehi.com 
www.enterprise.com 

19. Optum 
Margaret Kelly, National VP, Government Education 
and Labor 
505 N Brand Blvd., Suite 1200 
Glendale, CA 91203 
(818) 484-9188 
Margaret.kelly@optum.com 
www.optum.com 

 

14. Hanson Bridgett LLP 
Paul Mello, Partner 
Samantha Wolff, Partner 
425 Market Street, 26th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94105 
(415) 777-3200  
swolff@hansonbridgett.com 
pmello@hansonbridgett.com 
www.hansonbridgett.com 

 

20. Pacific Gas & Electric Company 
John Costa, Local Public Affairs 
1415 L Street, Suite 280 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 584-1885 
JB1F@pge.com 
www.pge.com 

 

15. Healthnet 
Daniel C. Chick, Director Government Affairs 
1201 K Street, Suite 1815 
Sacramento, CA  95814 
(916) 552-5285  
daniel.c.chick@healthnet.com 
www.healthnet.com 

 

21. PayPal 
Clam Lorenz, Head of Government Solutions 
2211 North First Street 
San Jose, CA 95131 
(202) 551-9079 
clorenz@paypal.com 
www.paypal.com 

16. Kaiser Permanente 
Kirk Kleinschmidt, Director, Government 
Relations 
1950 Franklin St, 3rd Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612  
(510) 987-1247 
kirk.p.kleinschmidt@kp.org 
www.kp.org 

 

22. Perspecta 
Frank Ury, Business Development, US Public Sector 
22851 Driftstone 
Mission Viejo, CA  92692 
(949) 922-9979 
frank.ury@perspecta.com 
www.perspecta.com 

17. Nationwide   
Rob Bilo, VP of Business Development 
4962 Robert J Mathews Parkway, Suite 100 
El Dorado Hills, CA 95762 
(866) 677-5008 
bilor@nationwide.com 
www.nrsforu.com 

23. Phrma 
Floreine Kahn, Deputy Vice President, State Advocacy 
1215 K Street, Suite 970 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 233-3480 
Fkahn@phrma.org 
www.phrma.org 

mailto:bjhoffman@essvote.com
http://www.essvote.com/
mailto:Kerry.hattevik@NEE.com
http://www.nexteraenergy.com/
mailto:Lisa.m.holmes@ehi.com
http://www.enterprise.com/
mailto:Margaret.kelly@optum.com
http://www.optum.com/
mailto:swolff@hansonbridgett.com
mailto:pmello@hansonbridgett.com
http://www.hansonbridgett.com/
mailto:JB1F@pge.com
http://www.pge.com/
mailto:daniel.c.chick@healthnet.com
http://www.healthnet.com/
mailto:clorenz@paypal.com
http://www.paypal.com/
mailto:kirk.p.kleinschmidt@kp.org
http://www.kp.org/
mailto:frank.ury@perspecta.com
http://www.perspecta.com/
mailto:bilor@nationwide.com
http://www.nrsforu.com/
mailto:Fkahn@phrma.org
http://www.phrma.org/


33 | P a g e  

 

24. Renew Financial 
Cliff Staton, Executive Vice President 
1221 Broadway, 4th Floor 
Oakland, CA 94612 
(510) 451-7917 
cliff@renewfund.com 
www.renewfund.com 

 

30. Western States Petroleum Association 
Catherine Reheis-Boyd, President 
1415 L St., Suite 600 
Sacramento, CA 95816  
(916) 498-7752 
creheis@wspa.org 
www.wspa.org 

25. Sutter Health | Aetna 
Tien Phan, CA Market Lead, Public Sector 
2850 Shadelands Dr. 
Walnut Creek, CA 94598 
(925) 948-4945  
PhanT@aetna.com 
www.aetna.com 

31. Ygrene Energy Fund 
Robbie Bendorf, Senior Director, Government 
Relations 
815 5th Street 
Santa Rosa, CA 95404 
(916) 998-0062 
robert.bendorf@ygrene.com 
www.ygreneworks.com 

26. Synoptek 
Eric Westrom, VP of Operational Planning and 
Strategy                          
3200 Douglas Blvd. Suite 320 
Roseville, CA 95661 
(916) 316-1212 
ewestrom@synoptek.com 
www.synoptek.com 

 

 

27. UnitedHealthcare 
Meghan Newkirk, Senior Vice President, Public 
Sector  
5701 Katella Avenue    
Cypress, CA  90630 
(714) 252-0335  
Meghan.Newkirk@uhc.com 
www.uhc.com 
 

 

28. Vanir Construction Management, Inc.  
Bob Fletcher, Vice President of Business 
Development 
4540 Duckhorn Drive, Suite 300  
Sacramento, CA  95834 
(916) 997-3195  
bob.fletcher@vanir.com  
www.vanir.com 

 

 

29. Wellpath 
Patrick Turner, Director of Business 
Development 
12220 El Camino Real 
San Diego, CA 92130  
(281) 468-9365  
patrick.turner@cmgcos.com 
www.wellpathcare.com 

 

tel:510-451-7917
mailto:cliff@renewfund.com
http://www.renewfund.com/
mailto:creheis@wspa.org
http://www.wspa.org/
mailto:PhanT@aetna.com
http://www.aetna.com/
mailto:robert.bendorf@ygrene.com
http://www.ygreneworks.com/
mailto:ewestrom@synoptek.com
http://www.synoptek.com/
mailto:Meghan.Newkirk@uhc.com
http://www.uhc.com/
mailto:bob.fletcher@vanir.com
mailto:bob.fletcher@vanir.com
http://www.vanir.com/
mailto:patrick.turner@cmgcos.com
http://www.wellpathcare.com/


34 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 
 

GOLD Partners 
 
1. AT&T 

Mike Silacci, Regional Vice President 
External Affairs – Greater Los Angeles Region 2250 E. 
Imperial Hwy, Room 541 
El Segundo, CA 90245 
(213) 445-6817 
Michael.Silacci@att.com 
www.att.com 

 

6. SiteLogIQ 
John J. Burdette III, Director, Facility Solutions 
Division 
1512 Silica Avenue,  
Sacramento, CA  95815 
(916) 570-1061 
jburdette@sitelogiq.com 
www.sitelogiq.com 

 
2. HdL Companies 

Andrew Nickerson, President 
1340 Valley Vista Drive, Suite 200 
Diamond Bar, CA 91765 
(909) 861-4335 
anickerson@hdlcompanies.com 
www.hdlcompanies.com 

 

 

3. KPMG 
Ian McPherson, Principal Advisory – Justice and 
Security 
1225 17th Street, Suite 800 
Denver, CO 80202 
(303) 382-7561  
(720) 485-7276  
ianmcpherson@kpmg.com 
www.kpmg.com 

 

 

4. Paragon Government Relations 
Joe Krahn, President 
220 Eye Street, NE, Suite 240 
Washington, DC 20002 
(202) 898-1444 
jk@paragonlobbying.com 
www.paragonlobbying.com 

 

 

5. Recology 
Eric Potashner, Senior Director Strategic Affairs 
50 California Street, 24th Floor  
San Francisco, CA 94111-9796 
(415) 624-9885  
epotashner@recology.com     
www.recology.com 

 

 

mailto:Michael.Silacci@att.com
http://www.att.com/
mailto:jburdette@sitelogiq.com
http://www.sitelogiq.com/
mailto:anickerson@hdlcompanies.com
http://www.hdlcompanies.com/
mailto:ianmcpherson@kpmg.com
http://www.kpmg.com/
mailto:jk@paragonlobbying.com
http://www.paragonlobbying.com/
mailto:epotashner@recology.com
http://www.recology.com/


35 | P a g e  

 

 
 
 

SILVER Partners 
1. Bandura Cyber 

Frank Trusheim, Regional Sales Manager 
9250 Bendix Road 
Columbia, Maryland 21045 
(415) 960-4833 
frank.trusheim@banduracyber.com 
Www.banduracyber.com 

7. Dewberry 
Alan Korth, RA, LEED AP, Associate Principal 
300 North Lake Avenue12th Floor 
Pasadena, CA 91101 
(626) 437-4674 
akorth@dewberry.com 
www.dewberry.com 

 

2. BIO 
Barbara LeVake, Government Relations 
P. O. Box 3014 
Sacramento, CA 95812 
(530) 673-5237 
barbara@blevake.com 
www.bio.org 

8. Energy Efficient Equity (E3) 
Chris Peterson, VP Municipal Development 
7676 Hazard Center Drive, 5th Floor Suite 33A 
San Diego, CA 92108 
(858) 616-7500 
cpeterson@energyefficientequity.com 
www.energyeffiientequity.com 

 

3. CannaRegs 
Amanda Ostrowitz, Founder 
1776 Race Street #109 
Denver CO, 80206 
(860) 944-0014 
amanda@cannaregs.com 
www.CannaRegs.com 

9. ENGIE Services U.S.  
Ashu Jain, Senior Manager 
23 Nevada 
Irvine, CA  92606 
(714) 473-7837 
ashu.jain@engie.com 
www.engieservices.com 

 

4. CCHI 
Mark Diel, Executive Director 
1107 9th Street, STE 601 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 404-9442 
mdiel@cchi4families.org 
www.cchi4families.org 

10. GEO Group 
Jessica Mazlum, Business Development Director - 
Western Region 
7000 Franklin Blvd, Suite 1230 
Sacramento, CA 95823 
(916) 203-5491 
jmazlum@geogroup.com 
www.geogroup.com 

 

5. CGL Companies 
Robert Glass, Executive Vice President 
2260 Del Paso, Suite 100 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
(509) 953-2587 
bglass@cglcompanies.com 
www.cglcompanies.com 

11. Hospital Council of Northern & Central California 
Brian L. Jensen, Regional Vice President 
1215 K Street, Suite 730  
Sacramento, CA  95814 
(916) 552-7564    
bjensen@hospitalcouncil.net 
www.hospitalcouncil.net 

 

6. Comcast 
Beth Hester, Vice President External Affairs 
3055 Comcast Circle 
Livermore, CA  94551  
(925) 424.0972 x0174  
beth_hester@comcast.com 
www.business.comcast.com 

 

mailto:frank.trusheim@banduracyber.com
http://www.banduracyber.com/
mailto:akorth@dewberry.com
http://www.dewberry.com/
mailto:barbara@blevake.com
http://www.bio.org/
mailto:cpeterson@energyefficientequity.com
http://www.energyeffiientequity.com/
mailto:amanda@cannaregs.com
http://www.cannaregs.com/
mailto:ashu.jain@engie.com
http://www.engieservices.com/
mailto:mdiel@cchi4families.org
http://www.cchi4families.org/
mailto:jmazlum@geogroup.com
http://www.geogroup.com/
mailto:bglass@cglcompanies.com
http://www.cglcompanies.com/
mailto:bjensen@hospitalcouncil.net
http://www.hospitalcouncil.net/
mailto:beth_hester@comcast.com
http://www.business.comcast.com/


36 | P a g e  

 

12. IBM 
Lisa Mattivi, Managing Director, California 
Public Sector 
2710 Gateway Oaks Drive.  
Sacramento, CA 95833 
(301) 461-1547 
lmattivi@us.ibm.com 
www.ibm.com 

18. MuniServices 
Brenda Narayan, Director of Government 
Relations 
1400 K St. Ste.301 
Sacramento, CA 95814 
(916) 261-5147 
Brenda.narayan@muniservices.com 
www.MuniServices.com 

 

13. Kofile 
Eugene Sisneros, Western Division Manager 
1558 Forrest Way 
Carson City, NV 89706 
(713) 204-5734 
Eugene.sisneros@kofile.us 
www.kofile.us 

19. Northrop Grumman Aerospace Systems 
Joe Ahn, Manager, State and Local Affairs 
101 Continental Blvd, MS-D5/140  
El Segundo, CA 90245  
(310) 332-4667 
joe.ahn@ngc.com 
www.northropgrumman.com 

 

14. LECET Southwest 
Chad Wright, Director 
4044 N. Freeway Blvd.          
Sacramento, CA 95834  
(916) 604-5585 
chad@lecetsw.org 
www.lecetsouthwest.org 

20. PARS 
Mitch Barker, Executive Vice President 
4350 Von Karman Avenue, Suite 100 
Newport Beach, CA 92660 
(800) 540-6369 x116 
mbarker@pars.org 
www.pars.org 

 

15. Liebert Cassidy Whitmore 
Cynthia Weldon, Director of Marketing  
6033 W. Century Boulevard, 5th Floor 
Los Angeles, CA 90045 
(310) 981-2055  
cweldon@lcwlegal.com  
www.lcwlegal.com 

21. Raymond James 
Robert Larkins, Managing Director, 
Western Region Manager 
One Embarcadero Center, 6th Floor 
San Francisco, CA 94111 
(415) 616-8025 
robert.larkins@raymondjames.com 
www.raymondjames.com\ 

 

16. Managed Care Systems, LLC 
Michael Myers, CEO 
4550 California Ave., Suite 500 
Bakersfield, CA 93309 
(661) 716-8820 
mmyers@managedcaresystems.com 
www.managedcaresystems.com 

22. RBC Capital Markets, LLC 
Bob Williams, Managing Director 
2 Embarcadero Center, Suite 1200 
San Francisco, CA 94111 
(415) 445-8674 
bob.williams@rbccm.com  
www.rbccm.com/municipalfinance/   

 

17. Measures for Justice 
Mikaela Rabinowitz, PhD., California State 
Director 
421 University Ave. 
Rochester, NY 14607 
(510) 710-6144 
mikaela.rabinowitz@measuresforjustice.org 
www.measuresforjustice.org 

23. Renovate America, HERO Program 
Dustin Reilich, Director of Municipal 
Development 
15073 Avenue of Science #200 
San Diego, CA 92128 
(949) 237-0965 
dreilich@renovateamerica.com 
www.heroprogram.com 

 
 

mailto:lmattivi@us.ibm.com
http://www.ibm.com/
mailto:Brenda.narayan@muniservices.com
http://www.muniservices.com/
mailto:Eugene.sisneros@kofile.us
http://www.kofile.us/
mailto:joe.ahn@ngc.com
http://www.northropgrumman.com/
mailto:chad@lecetsw.org
http://www.lecetsouthwest.org/
mailto:mbarker@pars.org
http://www.pars.org/
mailto:jjohnson@lcwlegal.com
http://www.lcwlegal.com/
mailto:robert.larkins@raymondjames.com
http://www.raymondjames.com/
mailto:mmyers@managedcaresystems.com
http://www.managedcaresystems.com/
mailto:bob.williams@rbccm.com
https://www.rbccm.com/municipalfinance/
mailto:mikaela.rabinowitz@measuresforjustice.org
http://www.measuresforjustice.org/
mailto:dreilich@renovateamerica.com
http://www.heroprogram.com/


37 | P a g e  

 

24. Roebbelen 
Megan Amos, Marketing Manager 
1241 Hawks Flight Court 
El Dorado Hills, CA 95762 
(916) 939-8305 
megana@roebbelen.com 
www.roebbelen.com 

 

30. Sierra West Group, INC. 
Mary Wallers, President 
9700 Business Park Drive, #102,   
Sacramento, CA 95827 
(916) 212-1618 
mewallers@sierrawestgroup.com 
www.sierrawestgroup.com 
 

25. Republic Services 
Tom Baker, Sr. Manager  
1855 E. Deer Valley Road 
Phoenix, AZ 85024 
(623) 241-8429 
tbaker@republicservices.com 
www.RepublicServices.com 

 

31. Telecare Corporation 
Rich Leib 
1080 Marina Village Parkway, Suite 100 
Alameda, CA 94501 
(619) 992-4680 
Rich.leib@liquidenviro.com 
www.telecarecorp.com 

26. SAIC 
Brenda Beranek, Senior Director, Business 
Development  
4065 Hancock Street, M/S Q1-A 
San Diego, CA 92110 
(916) 276-1982  
Brenda.L.Beranek@saic.com 
www.saic.com 

 

32. Thomson Reuters 
Ann Kurz, Director of Sales, Western Region 
510 E. Milham Ave.  
Portage, MI 49002 
(805) 479-3099 
Ann.kurz@thomsonreuters.com 
www.thomsonreuters.com/aumentum  

27. Samba Safety 
Scott Faulds, Director/GM Registration Services                                               
11040 White Rock Rd.  #200  
Rancho Cordova CA  95670 
(916) 288-6616 
sfaulds@sambasafety.com 
www.sambasafety.com 

 

33. Xerox Corporation 
Michelle Yoshino, General Manager 
1851 East First Street 
Santa Ana, CA 92705 
(714) 262-8854 
michelle.yoshino@xerox.com 
www.consulting.xerox.com 

28. Scotts Miracle Grow 
Michael Diamond, State Government Affairs 
8220 NE Husky Lane 
Kingston, WA 98346 
(206) 305-1622 
Michael.diamond@scotts.com 
www.scotts.com 

 

 

29. Sierra Pacific Industries 
Andrea Howell, Corporate Affairs Director 
PO Box 496028 
Redding, CA 96049 
(530) 378-8104 
AHowell@spi-ind.com 
www.spi-ind.com 

 

 

 
 
 

mailto:megana@roebbelen.com
http://www.roebbelen.com/
mailto:mewallers@sierrawestgroup.com
http://www.sierrawestgroup.com/
mailto:tbaker@republicservices.com
http://www.republicservices.com/
mailto:Rich.leib@liquidenviro.com
http://www.telecarecorp.com/
mailto:Brenda.L.Beranek@saic.com
http://www.saic.com/
mailto:Ann.kurz@thomsonreuters.com
http://www.thomsonreuters.com/aumentum
mailto:sfaulds@sambasafety.com
http://www.sambasafety.com/
mailto:michelle.yoshino@xerox.com
http://www.consulting.xerox.com/
mailto:Michael.diamond@scotts.com
http://www.scotts.com/
mailto:AHowell@spi-ind.com
http://www.spi-ind.com/


38 | P a g e  

 

 
 

April 25, 2019 
 
 
 
TO:  CSAC Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Manuel Rivas, Jr. | Deputy Executive Director of Operations and Member Services   
  David Liebler, Director of Public Affairs & Member Services  
   
SUBJECT: Communications Update 

 
Conferences & Meetings 
 

CSAC Regional Meeting – CSAC held its first Regional Meeting of 2019 on March 21st in Monterey 
County. The meeting’s focus was on the housing affordability and homelessness crises with an 
estimated 80 county representatives, corporate partners and CSAC policy experts attending the day-
long event. The event included panel discussions and interactive sessions among participants. CSAC 
staff is planning the next Regional Meeting, slated for the summer.  
 

2020 WIR Conference in Mariposa County – CSAC is working closely with the National Association of 
Counties (NACo), Mariposa County and RCRC to host the 2020 NACo WIR Conference, scheduled for 
May 2020 at the Tenaya Lodge in Mariposa County. Initial meetings have been held to discuss roles 
and responsibilities, as well as potential ideas to make this a successful conference. 
 

Communications 
 

2020 Challenge Awards – The call for entries for the 2019 CSAC Challenge Awards is going out this 
month. These annual awards spotlight the most innovative programs developed and implemented by 
California Counties. Awards are presented by population categories as well as issue areas. We 
encourage all counties to enter their programs. It’s a great way to promote your innovative work as 
well as spotlight the dedicated staff behind these best practices. To learn more visit the CSAC 
website. At the same time, we continue to feature the 2018 award recipients through videos and 
blogs. Counties’ programs profiled thus far include Alameda, Inyo, Nevada, Placer, Sacramento, San 
Diego, Shasta and Yuba. Future videos and blogs will feature Kern, Madera, Mendocino, Orange, 
Santa Barbara County programs.  
 
National County Government Month – April is National County Government Month, an annual event 
spearheaded by the National Association of Counties (NACo). This year’s theme is “Connecting the 
Unconnected,” the initiative of NACo President and San Diego County Supervisor Greg Cox. CSAC 
helped promote the event to our 58 counties and has been using social media platforms to promote 
the initiative as well as county best practices that fulfill the initiative’s goals. As part of our ongoing 
spotlight on county best practices, 10 videos produced by CSAC has been released through social 
media and other communications platforms.  
 

Traditional Media – CSAC continues to receive inquiries from reporters regarding a wide variety of 
issues. Recent inquiries have focused on key CSAC legislative priorities, including housing and 
transportation, homelessness, inverse condemnation, behavioral health, and various legislative 
issues. 
 



39 | P a g e  

 

Social Media – CSAC’s social media numbers have been strong thus far in 2019. Tweets alone 
received nearly 700,000 impressions in the first three months of the year. Numerous posts 
spotlighting county members attending the recent NACo Legislative Conference and the New 
Supervisors Institute have been a highlight during the first quarter. We continue to utilize Facebook, 
YouTube and Instagram on a daily basis to keep our members informed of issues of County interest. 
 

Video – CSAC has already produced 25 videos since the start of 2019. These include Challenge Award 
videos, Power Minutes, Legislative Conference promotions, Regional Meeting events, legislative 
testimony and featured videos, including a piece on CSAC-Results First Initiative. We have also begun 
developing short 15-20 second “teaser videos” that promote upcoming videos to be released; these 
teasers run on our social media channels and have been popular. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



40 | P a g e  

 

 
 

April 25, 2019 
 
 

TO:  CSAC Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Manuel Rivas, Jr. | California Counties Foundation CEO 

Chastity Benson, California Counties Foundation Operations Manager 
Amalia Mejia, Project Manager, CSAC-Results First  
Diana Medina, Project Manager, CSAC-Results First  

 
SUBJECT: California Counties Foundation Update 

 
The California Counties Foundation is the non-profit foundation of CSAC that houses the CSAC 
Institute, the partnership with the Pew-MacArthur Results First Initiative, and manages charitable 
contributions and grants to improve educational opportunities for county supervisors, county 
administrative officers, and senior staff.  Over the past year, staff has been focused on streamlining 
the governance structure and financial operations of the Foundation.  As a result, Board of Directors 
meetings are organized to engage members in active strategic discussions that give them a greater 
understanding of Foundation programs to make informed decisions on key matters.  This work will 
continue in 2019 as staff identifies potential Foundation initiatives and activities. 
 
CSAC Institute for Excellence in County Governance 
Future Department Heads Seminar – County boards and county executives had indicated the need to 
better prepare managers to take on their executive role.  In response to this need, the Institute 
developed the “Moving to the Executive Chair” seminar for aspiring department directors.  For the 
second year running, the seminar exceeded participation expectations with 50 registrants, from 25 
different counties.  On a six-point scale, participants rated the overall value of the seminar at 5.5 and 
relevancy of content at 5.4.  The next seminar will be scheduled for 2021. 
 
CSAC Institute County-Hosted Campuses:  Currently, the Institute has campuses in Sacramento, 
Shasta/Tehama, Santa Cruz, Tulare and Orange counties.  A number of MOUs are coming to an end 
within the next two years.  CSAC remains committed to serve and have an Institute presence in 
central, southern, coastal and northern California counties.  Ten counties have expressed interest to 
host satellite campuses – Alameda, Solano, Contra Costa, Mariposa, Tulare, Lake/Mendocino 
partnership, Mono, Placer, Butte and San Luis Obispo.  Staff is assessing the potential locations and 
will make recommendations to the Foundation Board at the April 25, 2019 meeting. 
 
Master of Public Administration Degree Program – The Institute is working on a partnership with the 
Department of Public Administration of California State University San Bernardino to offer a MPA 
degree exclusively for county managers, executives and elected officials beginning Fall 2019.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



41 | P a g e  

 

CSAC Support Hub for Criminal Justice Programming 
Many exciting things are happening on the CSAC Support Hub for Criminal Justice Programming 
(formerly CSAC-Results First) work. Below are a few highlights:  

 6 Counties to engage in strategic planning:  Teams in Ventura, Santa Barbara, Kern, Fresno, 

Santa Clara, and Santa Cruz counties will engage in strategic planning in how to apply their 

Results First work into mindsets, decision making, and other county processes.  

 2 Counties completed population of tools, vetting findings, and preparing to release 

reports:  Solano County and Nevada County have completed the population of their Program 

Inventory and Cost Benefit Model. Over the coming weeks both are working to vet their 

findings with county stakeholders, presenting to various stakeholders groups, and releasing 

reports.  

 Transition Site Visits:  With the recent hire of Diana Medina as the new Project Manager for 

the CSAC Support Hub, the team has been planning site visits with partner counties to ensure 

a smooth transition over the next 6 weeks.   

 New grant awarded to continue and expand CSAC Support Hub work:  CSAC received a 

grant in the amount of $896,473 from the Arnold Foundation to continue the work of the 

CSAC Support Hub over the next two years. With this grant the CSAC Support Hub will 

continue to build capacity for county staff by offering a package of comprehensive services 

that will empower them to transition to data-driven and evidence policy making in 

community supervision. The primary goal is to provide counties with a better understanding 

of the effectiveness of their criminal justice programs, their impact on recidivism, and 

provide building blocks to be able to conduct local evaluations of their efforts.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



42 | P a g e  

 

  County Counsels’ Association of California  

 
 
 
 

MEMORANDUM 
 

To:  Supervisor Virginia Bass, President, and  
  Members of the CSAC Board of Directors 
 
From:  Jennifer Bacon Henning, Litigation Coordinator 
 
Date:  April 25, 2019 
 
Re:  Litigation Coordination Program Update 
 

 
This memorandum will provide you with information on the Litigation Coordination 
Program’s new case activities since your last meeting in February 2019. Briefs filed on 
CSAC’s behalf are available at: http://www.counties.org/csac-litigation-coordination-
program.  
 
The following jurisdictions are receiving amicus support in the new cases described in this 
report: 
 

COUNTIES CITIES OTHER AGENCIES 

Alameda 
Butte 
San Francisco 
Tulare 

Dunsmuir 
Oakland (2 Cases) 

Marin County Open Space   
   District 

 
City of Oakland v. BP P.L.C. 
Pending in the Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals (filed Sept. 6, 2018)(18-16663) 
Status: Amicus Brief Filed Mar. 21, 2019; Case Pending 

CSAC previously filed a brief in County of San Mateo v. Chevron on the narrow issue 
of whether state law public nuisance cases can be heard in state court.  That case involves 
San Mateo County’s state law public nuisance claims in state court against various oil 
companies alleging that their practices have caused environmental harms, including the 
climate change that will result in a sea level rise and cause significant damages to plaintiff 
jurisdictions.  Though the oil companies removed the case to federal courts, the federal 
court remanded back to state court.  Defendants appealed, and CSAC filed a brief arguing 
that the county should be able to bring state law causes of action in state court.  (The brief 
did not addressing the underlying merits of sea level rise arguments.)  This case, brought by 
the Cities of Oakland and San Francisco, involves the same issue.  The only difference here 
is that the federal court did not remand back to state court, but then granted defendants’ 
motion to dismiss on the grounds that there are no federal law claims in the case.  CSAC 
has filed a brief and the case is pending. 

 

1100 K Street, Suite 101, Sacramento, CA 95814 (916) 327-7535 FAX (916) 443-8867 

http://www.counties.org/csac-litigation-coordination-program
http://www.counties.org/csac-litigation-coordination-program


43 | P a g e  

 

City of Oakland v. Oakland Police & Fire Retirement System (Retired Oakland Police Officers 
Association) 
29 Cal.App.5th 688 (1st Dist. Nov. 29, 2018)(A144653), petition for review denied (Mar. 13, 
2019)(S253441) 
Status: Petition for Review Denied; Case Closed 

Following an appellate decision regarding retirement payments to members of the Oakland 
Police and Fire Retirement System (PFRS), an association representing retire officers (ROPOA) moved for 
attorney fees under California’s private attorney general statue and CCP section 1021.5.  The trial court 
denied fees under both, declining to consider the Association’s financial state.  On appeal, the First 
District reversed.  The court ruled that the trial court should have considered evidence of ROPOA’s 
relative poverty when evaluating financial burden under section 1021.5.  The court then reviewed that 
evidence itself and found that ROPOA had “conclusively” proven its entitlement to fees under this 
standard.  In other words, the court held that an entitlement to fees rests not only on what the Supreme 
Court has previously described as the “objective financial incentives” of the case, but also on the 
claimant’s subjective inability to afford the costs of litigation.  The city sought Supreme Court review, 
which CSAC supported, but review was denied. 
 
Community Ventures v. Marin County Open Space District 
Pending in the First Appellate District (filed July 18, 2018)(A154867) 
Status: Amicus Brief Filed March 27, 2019; Case Pending 

The Marin County Open Space District adopted a program EIR to provide a framework for the 
District to follow in proposing, evaluating, and implementing specific future trail projects.  Subsequently, 
the District considered its first trail expansion under the program EIR, which would make changes to an 
existing hiking trail, including allowing bicycles on the trail.  The District determined that there would be 
no impacts from the project that were not already considered in the program EIR (i.e., a “consistency 
analysis” pursuant to CEQA Guidelines Section 15168(c)).  The District, therefore, did not create any 
additional environmental document, but rather relied on the program EIR, and approved the project.  
Plaintiff filed a writ, which the trial court granted on two grounds relevant to the amicus request: (1) 
CEQA required the District to conduct an initial study for the proposed project, rather than simply 
making consistency determinations pursuant to Guidelines Section 15168; and (2) The District violated 
CEQA because it failed to property consider the “social effects” of converting the trails.  CSAC filed a 
brief in support of the District. 
 
County of Butte v. Dept. of Water Resources 
30 Cal.App.5th 630 (3d Dist. Dec. 20, 2018)(C071785), petition for review granted (Apr. 10, 
2019)(S253810) 
Status: Petition for Review Granted and Case Remanded Back to Court of Appeal 

The California Department of Water Resources developed an EIR in connection with its 
application to extend its federal license under the Federal Power Act to operate the Oroville Dam.  Butte 
and Plumas Counties brought this CEQA action.  Though neither party raised it at the trial court or initial 
appellate briefing, when the CEQA challenge was pending in the Third Appellate District, the court 
requested supplemental briefing on whether the Federal Power Act preempted the counties’ state court 
CEQA challenge.  The appellate court thereafter determined that it did not have jurisdiction to consider 
the CEQA claims because CEQA was preempted by the Federal Power Act, so only the Federal Energy 
Regulatory Commission (FERC) can provide relief.  The counties have filed a Petition for Review, which 
CSAC supported, and on April 10, the Supreme Court granted the petition and sent the case back to the 
Court of Appeal to reconsider in light of applicable law. 
 
 



44 | P a g e  

 

In re N.S. (Alameda County Social Services Agency v. N.S.) 
Pending in the First Appellate District (filed May 18, 2018)(A154443) 
Status: Amicus Brief Filed April 15, 2019; Case Pending 

In this case, Bay Area Legal Aid represented a juvenile minor in a dependency appeal related to 
whether certain evidence was properly allowed in her dependency proceedings.  After a successful 
interim ruling, Legal Aid then filed a request for attorneys’ fees under the Private Attorney General 
Statute (Code of Civil Procedure section 1021.5).  The juvenile court denied the fee request because: (1) 
the minor was not a “prevailing party” as required by the statute because the appeal was only on an 
interim issue; and (2) the Private Attorney General Statute does not apply to dependency proceedings 
because in such proceedings, minors have a statutory entitlement to competent counsel, eliminating the 
need to provide other incentives for counsel.  The court went on to state that application of CCP 1021.5 
in dependency proceedings would “subvert the legislative plan for the provision and compensation of 
counsel . . . .”  Bay Area Legal Aid has appealed.  CSAC has filed an amicus brief in support of Alameda 
County. 
 
People v. Lexington National Insurance Co. 
Pending in the Fifth Appellate District (filed Oct. 23, 2018)(F078285) 
Status: Amicus Brief Due July 15, 2019 

In this bail bond forfeiture case, the surety sought exoneration of the bond on the ground that 
bail was unconstitutionally set in the underlying criminal case.  Specifically, surety raised the same 
arguments pending at the California Supreme Court in In re Humphrey (S247278), contending that the 
court’s failure to hold a hearing on the amount of bail, to consider the criminal defendant’s ability to 
pay, or consider the possibility of less restrictive options, violated constitutional due process rights.  And 
because the bail was unconstitutionally set, surety argued that the bail contract was void, such that 
judgment on the bond should be set aside, the forfeiture vacated, and the bond exonerated.   The court 
here rejected surety’s argument, noting that the argument would invalidate any bail forfeiture decision 
that was made pre or post Humphrey when bail was set using a bail schedule.  The court determined 
that the Court of Appeal’s decision in Humphrey did not support that result, even if it is still persuasive 
authority: “The Humphrey Court intended to aid defendants who could not afford bail and were being 
held despite low flight risk and lack of danger to the community, not bail sureties who provide bail for 
absconding defendants.”  The surety has appealed, and Tulare is seeking amicus support.  The surety has 
appealed, and CSAC will file an amicus brief in support. 
 
Wilde v. City of Dunsmuir 
  29 Cal.App.5th 158 (3d. Dist. Nov. 15, 2018)(C082664), petition for review granted (Jan. 30, 
2019)(S252915) 
Status: Amicus Brief Due May 22, 2019 

The City of Dunsmuir adopted a water rate increase to upgrade the city’s 105-year old water 
system.  The rate increase was adopted with the required Prop. 218 studies, and was not challenged by 
a majority protest.  Plaintiff subsequently collected sufficient signatures to qualify a referendum on the 
rate increases.  The city refused to place the referendum on the ballot on the grounds that rate 
increases are not subject to referendum.  The appellate court ruled against the city.  The court found 
that because the new rates were the result of new policies adopted by the city, they were legislative in 
nature and thus subject to referendum.  The court also concluded that the referendum impacted new 
and additional spending rather than the expenditure of previously budgeted funds, and as such the 
referendum did not undermine the city’s ability to provide essential government services. Supreme 
Court review, which CSAC supported, was granted.  CSAC will now file a brief on the merits in support of 
the city. 
 



45 | P a g e  

 

 



46 | P a g e  

 

 



47 | P a g e  

 

 



48 | P a g e  

 

 



49 | P a g e  

 

 



50 | P a g e  

 

 



51 | P a g e  

 

 



52 | P a g e  

 

 



53 | P a g e  

 

2019  
CSAC Calendar of Events | Board of Directors 

 

JANUARY 

1 New Year’s Day 
16 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board Meeting & Installation of Officers 
16 CSAC Executive Committee Orientation Dinner | Sacramento 

6:30 PM Reception, 7:15 PM Dinner | Esquire Grill – 13th & K Streets 
17 CSAC Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

10:00 AM – 1:30 PM | Capitol Event Center – 1020 11th Street, Sacramento 
21 Martin Luther King, Jr. Day 

30 – 31  CSAC Executive Committee Leadership Forum | San Diego 

  

FEBRUARY 
14 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting |Sacramento 

10:00 AM – 2:00 PM | Capitol Event Center – 1020 11th Street, Sacramento 
18 President’s Day 
20 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

  

MARCH 
2 – 6  NACo Legislative Conference | Washington, D.C. 

13 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
21 Regional Meeting – Housing & Homelessness | Monterey 

  

APRIL 
4 CSAC Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

10:00 AM – 1:30 PM | Capitol Event Center – 1020 11th Street, Sacramento 
24 – 25  CSAC Legislative Conference | Hyatt Regency Sacramento 

25 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
12:30 – 4:00 PM | Hyatt Regency Sacramento, BC – 1209 L Street, Sacramento  

  

MAY 
1 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

15 – 17  NACo WIR Conference | Spokane County, Washington 
22 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
27 Memorial Day 

  

JUNE 
TBD Regional Meeting | TBD 

19 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 
  

JULY 
4 Independence Day 

10 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
11 – 15  NACo Annual Conference | Clark County, Las Vegas, Nevada 

  

AUGUST 
1 CSAC Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

10:00 AM – 1:00 PM | Capitol Event Center – 1020 11th Street, Sacramento 
14 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 



54 | P a g e  

 

SEPTEMBER 
2 Labor Day 
5 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

10:00 AM – 2:00 PM | Capitol Event Center – 1020 11th Street, Sacramento 
25 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

TBD Regional Meeting | TBD 
  

OCTOBER 
2 – 4  CSAC Executive Committee Retreat | TBD 

14 Columbus Day 
16 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 

  

NOVEMBER 
11 Veterans’ Day 
13 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Executive Committee Meeting | Sacramento 
28 Thanksgiving Day 

  

DECEMBER 
3 – 6  CSAC 125th Annual Meeting | Hilton, San Francisco 

5 CSAC Board of Directors Meeting | San Francisco 
11 Rural County Representatives of California (RCRC) Board of Directors Meeting | Sacramento 

18 – 20  CSAC Officers’ Retreat | Napa County 
25 Christmas Day 

 
as of 01.30.19 

 
 
 
 


	AGENDA 
	1 - ROLL CALL
	2 - APPROVAL OF MINUTES FROM FEBRUARY 14, 2019
	3 - CSAC INSTITUTE CREDENTIALS  & FELLOWS
	4 - INSTITUTE FOR LOCAL GOVERNMENT
	6 - CSAC POLICY COMMITTEE REPORTS
	Administration of Justice
	Agriculture, Environment & Natural Resources
	Government, Finance & Administration
	Health & Human Services
	Housing, Land Use & Transportation

	7 - CONSIDERATION OF PROPOSED CSAC BUDGET FOR FY 2019-20
	9 - CSAC FINANCE CORPORATION REPORT
	11 - CSAC COMMUNICATIONS,   OPERATIONS & MEMBER SERVICES UPDATE
	12 - CALIFORNIA COUNTIES FOUNDATION UPDATE
	13 - INFORMATION ITEMS, NO PRESENTATION
	County Counsels' Association of California
	CSAC Institute Course Guide
	2019 CSAC Board of Directors Calendar of Events


